
 

CITY OF CHARITON, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

December 15, 2025 – 5:00 PM 

115 S. Main Street – Chariton City Hall 

 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT – If the public wishes to address the Council, please stand, state your name 

and address, and then proceed with your comments. All comments should be limited to three minutes 

unless otherwise allowed by the presiding officer. Please note that no action can be taken at this 

meeting, but items may be requested as future agenda items at the Council's discretion. 

 

4. APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA – All items on the Consent Agenda will be approved 

with a single motion. Individual discussions of these items will only take place if a request is made 

before the Council votes on the motion. 

a. Accept and Place on File the Minutes of the Council Meeting held on December 1, 2025 

b. Approval of Class E Retail Alcohol License Ownership Change for Caseys 

 

5. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF CLAIMS 

 

6. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF NOVEMBER 2025 FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 

7. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Oath of Office – City Council 

b. Consider A Second Engineering Firm for a Council Presentation 

c. Consider Approval of a Collection Hauler Permit for Waste Management of Iowa 

d. Consider Approval of a Collection Hauler Permit for Midwest Sanitation & Recycling 

e. Consider an Offer to Purchase 413 North 13th Street 

f. Consider Repeal of Chariton’s Rental Code Inspection Ordinance 

g. Reappointment to the Cemetery Board 

h. Reappointments to the Park & Recreation Board 

i. Reappointment to the Water Board 

 

8. CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 

 

9. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 

 

10. STAFF MEMBER COMMENTS 

 

11. CLOSED SESSION – Pursuant to Iowa Code Chapter 21.5 Section (1)(c), the Council may vote to 

hold a closed session to discuss strategy with counsel in matters that are presently in litigation or 

where litigation is imminent where its disclosure would be likely to prejudice or disadvantage the 

position of the governmental body in that litigation. 

 

12. MOTION TO ADJOURN 





 

COUNCIL MEETING 

City of Chariton, Iowa 

December 1, 2025   5:00 P.M. 

 

 

 The City Council of the City of Chariton, Iowa, met in regular session in 

the Council Chambers in City Hall of said City on December 1, 2025, at 5:00 

p.m. The meeting was called to order by Mayor Jayma Hoch. Present for the 

meeting were Council Members Stephen Fenton, Jayma Hoch, David Kuball, Jarrett 

McGee and Gary Shutt. Absent – None. 

 

 Also present for the meeting was City Manager Douglas Anderson, City 

Clerk Christy Metzger, Fire Chief Steve Davis and Building and Code Enforcement 

Officer Shawn Werts. 

 

 It was moved by McGee, seconded by Shutt, to approve the December 1, 

2025, Council meeting agenda. The roll was called and the vote was: 

 

 Aye:  Fenton, Hoch, Kuball, McGee, Shutt 

 Nay:  None 

 

 It was moved by McGee, seconded by Kuball, to approve the consent agenda 

consisting of the approval of the minutes of the City Council meeting held on 

November 17, 2025, approval of a Class E Retail Alcohol License for Hy-Vee, 

Inc., d/b/a Hy-Vee Food Store, located at 2001 Court Avenue, and approval of a 

Class C Retail Alcohol License for Cater 2 U 2, located at 1215 Court Avenue. 

The roll was called and the vote was: 

 

 Aye:  Fenton, Hoch, Kuball, McGee, Shutt 

 Nay:  None 

 

 It was moved by Fenton, seconded by Shutt, that the resolution 

authorizing the payment of claims be adopted. The roll was called and the vote 

was: 

 

 Aye:  Fenton, Hoch, Kuball, McGee, Shutt 

 Nay:  None 

 

Thereupon the Mayor declared the resolution duly adopted and numbered 2025-69 

and signed her approval thereto. 

 

 Gary Brons, Principal-in-Charge, and CJ Gross, Project Manager, with 

McClure Engineering, were present at the meeting to discuss with Council the 

upgrades needed at the sewage treatment plant. 

  

 It was moved by Hoch, seconded by Kuball, to direct the City Attorney to 

prepare an ordinance to repeal Chapter 15.18 Rental Housing Code of the 

Chariton Municipal Code and present it at a future City Council meeting. The 

roll was called and the vote was: 

 

 Aye:  Fenton, Hoch, Kuball, McGee, Shutt 

 Nay:  None 

 

 City Manager Anderson presented to the Council a bid of $500 from Jesse 



 

Swainey for the city-owned property located at 1106 Green Avenue. After 

discussion, the Council tabled this item and requested that Mr. Swainey provide 

a detailed schedule and cost estimate for the proposed repairs.  

 

 Discussion was held on a grant application to Chariton Valley Housing 

Trust Fund for the demolition of 609 South 8th Street. After discussion, it was 

moved by Fenton, seconded by McGee, to approve the grant application to 

Chariton Valley Housing Trust Fund and approve the bid from Donnie McGee, in 

the amount of $8,000, for demolition of said property. The roll was called and 

the vote was: 

 

 Aye:  Fenton, Hoch, Kuball, McGee, Shutt 

 Nay:  None 

 

 There being no further business to come before the meeting, it was moved 

by Fenton, seconded by Shutt, that the meeting be adjourned until 5:00 p.m., 

December 15, 2025, in the Council Chambers in City Hall, Chariton, Iowa. The 

roll was called and the vote was: 

 

 Aye:  Fenton, Hoch, Kuball, McGee, Shutt 

 Nay:  None  

 

The meeting adjourned at 5:53 p.m. 

 

        ______________________________ 

 Christy Metzger, City Clerk 











          

GENERAL

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES OPERATING SUPPLIES $168.01

AT&T MOBILITY UTILITIES                        $123.81

BELCHER, XANDER               FLAG FOOTBALL REFEREE            $60.00

BOMGAARS                      MARKING PAINT                    $44.95

BROWN, BLAINE                 FLAG FOOTBALL REFEREE            $72.00

CHARITON NEWSPAPERS           LEGAL PUBLICATIONS               $956.41

CHARITON WATER DEPARTMENT     1/2 CELL TOWER RENT              $1,323.59

COUNTRY TRASH                 GARBAGE SERVICES                 $130.00

ELITE PEST CONTROL            PEST CONTROL                     $100.00

HAYWOOD, BENTLEY              FLAG FOOTBALL REFEREE            $72.00

INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL    YEARLY MEMBERSHIP                $170.00

IOWA ONE CALL                 IOWA ONE CALLS                   $103.50

JENSEN PROMOTIONS             GOLF CART STICKERS               $190.00

LISCO                         DOMAIN NAME RENEWAL $125.00

LOCKRIDGE INC                 LIGHT POLES ON SQUARE            $177.93

NAPA AUTO PARTS               EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE $35.51

O'REILLY AUTO PARTS           EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE $44.96

PETTY CASH                    POSTAGE $51.00

SCISWA                        LANDFILL DUMPING FEES            $223.60

SECURED OVERHEAD DOORS        BUILDING MAINTENANCE             $1,377.00

TAYLOR, BRUCE                 FLAG FOOTBALL REFEREE       $82.50

TODD, DAWSON                  FLAG FOOTBALL REFEREE                $48.00

TREASURER,STATE OF IOWA       RECREATION SALES TAX             $301.35

TRUE VALUE                    CLEANING SUPPLIES                $11.78

US CELLULAR                   SECURITY CAMERAS                 $69.16

VERIZON                       UTILITIES                        $200.05

WINDSTREAM                    UTILITIES                        $953.95

DEC 12 PAYROLL SALARIES $43,455.02

TOTAL: $50,379.26

RESOLUTION NO. 2025

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Chariton, Iowa,
that the following claims be approved and payment authorized:



CEMTERY MAINTENANCE

BEAR, ALEX                    MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES $680.51

CHARITON WATER DEPARTMENT     WATER                            $29.24

LUCAS COUNTY HEALTH CENTER    LAB TESTING                      $35.00

DEC 12 PAYROLL SALARIES $2,253.80

TOTAL: $2,998.55

COMMUNITY CENTER OPERATING

CHARITON WATER DEPARTMENT     WATER                            $101.03

HARING DRAIN SOLUTIONS, LLC   REPAIR $120.00

PETTY CASH                    POSTAGE $6.42

TRUE VALUE                    EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE $5.78

WINDSTREAM                    UTILITIES                        $109.94

DEC 12 PAYROLL SALARIES $1,287.89

TOTAL: $1,631.06

ROAD USE TAX

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES       EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE            $147.25

BOMGAARS                      OPERATING SUPPLIES $15.98

CHARITON WATER DEPARTMENT     WATER                            $51.60

CONTINENTAL RESEARCH CORPORATI EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE            $309.77

ELITE PEST CONTROL            PEST CONTROL                     $55.00

LOCKRIDGE INC                 NEW SHOP                         $563.29

NAPA AUTO PARTS               EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE            -$66.09

NORTHLAND PRODUCTS COMPANY    MACHINE SERVICE                  $352.95

O'REILLY AUTO PARTS           DUMPTRUCK                        $675.85

THE SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO       NEW SHOP                         $62.76

TRUE VALUE                    EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE            $15.99

US CELLULAR                   TABLET $34.63

ZURCHER TIRE, INC             EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE            $202.00

DEC 12 PAYROLL SALARIES $16,784.64

TOTAL: $19,205.62



SEWER

CHARITON WATER DEPARTMENT     WATER                            $506.40

COUNTRY TRASH                 WASTEWATER SERVICES              $170.00

LOCKRIDGE INC                 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES $45.78

MICROBAC LABORATORIES, INC    LAB TESTING                      $2,311.50

TREASURER,STATE OF IOWA       SEWER SALES TAX                  $1,593.06

US CELLULAR                   TABLET $34.63

WINDSTREAM                    UTILITIES                        $636.66

ZURCHER TIRE, INC             EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE            $665.20

DEC 12 PAYROLL SALARIES $232.19

TOTAL: $6,195.42

AIRPORT HANGER

IOWA PUBLIC AIRPORTS ASSOCIATI MEMBERSHIP $125.00

LOCKRIDGE INC                 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE $9.69

WINDSTREAM                    UTILITIES                        $338.73

TOTAL: $473.42

STORM WATER

TREASURER,STATE OF IOWA       STORM SEWER SALES TAX            $90.16

TOTAL: $90.16

CENTERAL FUEL FACILITY

AGRILAND FS INC               DIESEL FUEL                      $18,048.16

TOTAL: $18,048.16

EMPLOYEE BENFITS

DEC 12 PAYROLL TAXES + BENEFITS $20,101.59

TOTAL: $20,101.59



GRAND TOTAL: $119,123.24

NOV RECEIPTS: $405,644.68

     Aye:  

     Nay:  

        __________________________

                Mayor 

Attest:

 _____________________________

           City Clerk

  Council Member introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its 
adoption. Council Member  seconded the motion and upon the roll being 
called the vote was:

Thereupon the Mayor declared the resolution duly adopted and numbered
2025- and signed her approval thereto this 15th day of December, 2025.















Wastewater Facility Nutrient Reduction Project A U G U S T 2 9 ,  2 0 2 5
C H A R I T O N ,  IOWA

PROPOSAL FOR 
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES



 

 

 August 29, 2025

Doug Anderson 
City Manager
City of Chariton
115 South Main Street
Chariton, Iowa 50049

CITY OF CHARITON, IOWA
WASTEWATER FACILITY NUTRIENT REDUCTION PROJECT
PROPOSAL FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES

Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. appreciates the opportunity to submit our qualifications to 
provide engineering services for the Wastewater Facility Nutrient Reduction Project 
identified in your request for proposals.  

Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. will provide services for the City of Chariton from our West Des 
Moines offices.  Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. has completed many wastewater treatment 
plant projects for cities in Iowa over the last 60 years.  

Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. recently visited with City staff and we have a very clear 
understanding of the scope and goals for the project.  

Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. is currently involved in several wastewater treatment facility 
projects.  These projects have many similarities with the project Chariton is considering.  
Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. is also very familiar with the program requirements for the 
State Revolving Fund (SRF).

We look forward to the opportunity to provide our services to the City of Chariton.  
Please do not hesitate to contact us at 1-800-241-8000 with any questions you may 
have.  

VEENSTRA & KIMM, INC.

Forrest S. Aldrich, P.E.
Project Manager
faldrich@v-k.net



CITY OF CHARITON: WASTEWATER FACILITY NUTRIENT REDUCTION PROJECT 3

Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. (V&K) is a professional services firm specializing in a 
wide range of design, engineering, and environmental solutions throughout the 
Midwest. In April 2025, V&K and all its affiliates, were acquired and became part 
Kleinfelder, Inc. (Kleinfelder). Kleinfelder is a leading engineering, design, 
construction management, construction materials inspection and testing, and 
environmental professional services firm. Collectively, the organization now 
employs more than 3,300 professionals and operates from over 110 office 
locations across the United States, Canada, and Australia

Since its founding Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. has grown to its current size of 
approximately 200 employees. Veenstra & Kimm, Inc.’s main office is located in 
West Des Moines, Iowa.  Starting in the mid-1990s Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. 
embarked on a program of opening smaller branch offices throughout our 
primary work area.  The role of the branch offices is to improve the local delivery 
of services to our client communities.

In addition to the main office in West Des Moines, Iowa, Veenstra & Kimm, Inc.  
currently has branch offices located in Sergeant Bluff, Iowa; Coralville, Iowa; 
Mason City, Iowa; Dubuque, Iowa; Rock Island, Illinois; Bolingbrook, Illinois: 
Springfield, Illinois; Rochester, Minnesota and Kansas City, Missouri. Veenstra & 
Kimm, Inc.’s branch offices work as an integrated part of our overall company 
resources to improve the delivery of services to our client communities.  

Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. is organized into three primary work groups.  The work 
groups are designed to provide for an efficient undertaking of projects and to 
allow for the specialization of our professional staff in their areas of expertise 
and experience.  

MAIN OFFICE
Forrest Aldrich, P.E.

6775 Vista Drive
West Des Moines, IA  50266

515-225-8000 (p)
faldrich@v-k.net

BUILDING RELATIONSHIPS 
ENGINEERING SOLUTIONS

OFFICES
10 locations 
across the 
Midwest 

APPROACH
Each project 
and client 
is unique

SERVICE
Dedicated 
to long-term 
relationships

VALUE
Providing 
value focused
solutions for 
every project

FIRM OVERVIEW



CITY OF CHARITON: WASTEWATER FACILITY NUTRIENT REDUCTION PROJECT 4

Veenstra & Kimm, Inc.’s environmental engineering department provides services 
relating to the design of wastewater treatment plants, pumping stations, booster 
stations, water treatment plants, water storage facilities, wells, water distribution 
systems, and other similar utility related facilities. Veenstra & Kimm, Inc.’s 
environmental engineering department includes eleven environmental engineers, 
four with a Master’s degree in environmental engineering, who specialize in the 
design of wastewater treatment plants.  

Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. has over the years remained a leader in the area of water 
treatment and wastewater treatment.  Each year water and wastewater projects 
constitute between 70% and 75% of our business.  Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. has on 
staff a construction manager with over 25 years of experience in the area of 
treatment plant evaluation and operation.  Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. understands the 
importance of both the theoretical design and the practical operational issues 
relating to waste water treatment.

Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. provides design services using our staff resources.  For a 
wastewater treatment plant project, Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. provides the process 
engineering, civil engineering, electrical engineering, mechanical engineering and 
structural engineering utilizing our own staff.  Our in house capability provides a 
better integration of services and enhances quality and timeliness of performance. 
All of these services will be provided from our West Des Moines office. 

Veenstra & Kimm, Inc.’s civil engineering department provides services relating to 
street and road design, water main design, sanitary sewer design and rehabilitation, 
and other associated services normally related to civil engineering projects.  

Veenstra & Kimm, Inc.’s civil engineering department includes 22 professional 
engineers with experience in all aspects of utility and transportation design.  
Veenstra & Kimm, Inc.’s civil engineering department provides services to 
communities in Iowa and surrounding states as well as county, state and federal 
agencies and private clients.

Veenstra & Kimm, Inc.’s construction services department provides a full range of 
services relating to topographic and land surveying, construction administration and 
resident observation.    

Veenstra & Kimm, Inc.’s construction services department includes five survey 
crews located in our central office and branch offices.  Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. has a 
full staff of resident reviewers.  Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. is particularly proud of our 
experience in the resident review and construction observation of water and 
wastewater projects.  

The type of service we provide varies with the client and the project.  Services may 
include preliminary cost estimates, preliminary studies and reports, rate and 
feasibility studies, preparation of plans and specifications, assistance in awarding 
construction contracts and monitoring of construction.

We believe our role as a consulting engineer is to assist our clients in developing 
and implementing their projects.  We are technically qualified to provide the 
engineering expertise necessary to translate our clients’ goals and objectives into 
completed projects in a cost-effective manner.  We believe our role is to provide 
guidance and assistance to ensure our clients are satisfied with the completed 
project.  Our business philosophy is to satisfy our clients.  This goal of providing 
quality service to satisfy our clients is responsible for the large volume of repeat 
business which provides for the core of our business practice.

Whether in an ongoing relationship with a client or on a single project basis, 
Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. strives to establish a good working relationship between our 
clients, our personnel and outside agencies with which we deal, including the Iowa 

For a wastewater 
treatment plant 

project, Veenstra 
& Kimm, Inc. 
provides the 

process engineering, 
civil engineering, 

electrical 
engineering, 
mechanical 

engineering 
and structural 

engineering 
utilizing our own 

staff.  Our in house 
capability provides 
a better integration 

of services and 
enhances quality 
and timeliness of 

performance.



CITY OF CHARITON: WASTEWATER FACILITY NUTRIENT REDUCTION PROJECT 5

Department of Natural Resources, the Iowa Department of Economic Development, 
the Iowa Finance Authority, USDA – Rural Development and the various federal 
regulatory and funding agencies.

Our approach to engineering fees is that professional services must be provided at a 
fair and reasonable cost.  Although our fees may not be the lowest engineering fees, 
we believe we provide excellent value to our clients for their investment in 
engineering dollars.  We believe engineering fees combined with construction costs 
should provide the best value to our clients. 

Work will be performed from our main office in West Des Moines, Iowa. 



CITY OF CHARITON: WASTEWATER FACILITY NUTRIENT REDUCTION PROJECT 6

KLEINFELDER
Kleinfelder is a full-service, consulting, engineering, construction, and operations firm providing lasting and integrated solutions 
in water, environment, transportation, energy, and facilities to clients worldwide. 

Kleinfelders projects involve the full range of services, from conceptual design, master planning, market analysis, and facility 
planning, to preliminary, detailed, and conformed design, construction phase services, commissioning and startup, O&M 
manual preparation, and operations training. Kleinfelder has been at the forefront of wastewater treatment for six decades and 
has long committed to helping our clients evaluate technology options to select the best value solution. We understand that 
utilities are facing tighter budgets; industries, cities, and towns are making sustainability promises to their communities; and 
municipalities are looking for creative ways to reduce energy, expenditures, and costs. Our technical specialists are leaders in 
resource recovery, reclamation, and reuse, including:  

	9 Nutrient Recovery: Sidestream management and biological nutrient removal
	9 Energy Recovery: Renewable natural gas, anaerobic digestion, and cogeneration
	9 Residuals Management: Fertilizer and fuel

Kleinfelders extensive experience in the design and construction of wastewater treatment facilities includes a complete array 
of wastewater treatment process planning and design, plant operation and maintenance (O&M) assistance, instrumentation 
and control (I&C) facilities, solids handling systems, disinfection system planning and design, and energy conservation and 
reuse.



CITY OF CHARITON: WASTEWATER FACILITY NUTRIENT REDUCTION PROJECT 7

PROJECT APPROACH
Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. understands that careful planning of a project approach is vital to the success of any project. The City 
of Chariton is planning to proceed with capital improvements to increase the efficiency for the removal of nutrients at the 
wastewater treatment facility.  Since many of the improvements are related to procurement of equipment, order and delivery 
time will be an important component to consider as we proceed with the design of the improvements. 

 

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING
Immediately after approval of the Engineering Agreement, Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. will begin the Preliminary Engineering 
Phase of the project.  Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. believes the Preliminary Engineering Phase is a very critical phase in the project 
development phase.  During this phase, we will evaluate the existing infrastructure using City records, visual observations, and 
our topographic survey to accurately refine the scope of the entire project.  Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. will work with the information 
provided to further define the project limits, options and constraints and continuously coordinate and communicate with City 
Staff to determine the final project scope that best matches the necessities of the City.  

Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. has experiences from many different wastewater treatment facilities that can be incorporated into 
these improvements.  However, the City Staff has the most knowledge of their operational shortcomings and that knowledge 
is important to be included in the design of the improvements. Veenstra & Kimm, Inc.’s experience is that often times City 
staff knows what the project needs are and combined with Veenstra & Kimm, Inc.’s previous experiences we can create a 
final project that meets and exceeds expectations.  

Nutrient removal includes the removal of total nitrogen (TN) and total phosphorous (TP). During the preliminary engineering 
phase Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. will investigate two removal options for total nitrogen and two removal options for total 
phosphorous. 

Total nitrogen removal requires a low oxygen anoxic zone and a source of carbon. It may be possible to create this environment 
within the existing oxidation ditches by turning off one of the surface aerators, adding submerged mixers and diverting 
some of the mixed liquor into the anoxic zone. This option will be the most cost effective option for TN removal if the existing 
oxidation ditches are of adequate size and depth. The other option is to construct an external separate low oxygen anoxic tank 
for both oxidation ditches. The tank would most likely be constructed north or west of the existing oxidation ditches.

Total phosphorous removal can be completed biologically or chemically. The first option is to remove the phosphorous 
chemically using alum or ferric. This option has the lowest capital cost but the highest operational costs. This option produces 
a lot more sludge that will need to be land applied and there will also be a continuous chemical cost. The other option is to 
construct a no oxygen anaerobic tank for both oxidation ditches. The tanks can be constructed with a shared wall with the 
low oxygen anoxic tanks if used  for total nitrogen removal. This option has the highest capital cost but the lowest operational 
cost. 

01 02 03 04
PHASE PHASE PHASE PHASE

PRELIMINARY
ENGINEERING

FINAL
DESIGN BIDDING CONSTRUCTION



CITY OF CHARITON: WASTEWATER FACILITY NUTRIENT REDUCTION PROJECT 8

Preliminary Engineering Evaluation Options

			   Total Nitrogen Removal Option 1: 	 Existing Tank Modifications
			   Total Nitrogen Removal Option 2: 	 New External Anoxic Tank

			   Total Phosphorous Removal Option 1:	 Chemical Feed System
			   Total Phosphorous Removal Option 2:	 New External Anaerobic Tank 

Preliminary engineering will be complete with preliminary drawings that incorporate all of the project components.  
Updated estimates will also be prepared to reflect the preliminary plans and equipment selections. Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. 
will review said items with the City Staff and Council.  

Final Bid Packages will be selected at the completion of the Preliminary Engineering Phase.  If updated estimates indicate the 
construction budget does not allow for all of the improvements to be constructed the City can select which components to 
include as alternate bids to allow them to award those items after receipt of bids and analyzing the budget.

FINAL DESIGN

After the Preliminary Engineering is complete Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. will proceed with the Final Design.  The final design will 
include final bidding and construction plans and technical specifications as well as bidding and contract documents. The final 
plans will include the details needed for contractors to bid and construct the improvements. These plans will incorporate 
the civil, environmental, electrical, mechanical, and structural designs and details prepared by each of Veenstra & Kimm, 
Inc’s engineers and support staff. As the final plans and specifications are completed, Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. will refine the 
construction cost estimates previously prepared and adjust bid packages and bid alternates as needed.

BIDDING PHASE

During the Bid Phase, Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. will assist the City with advertising for bids and plan distribution to prospective 
bidders.  Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. will address bidders questions and assist the City by administering the bid opening and 
tabulating bids for City consideration and subsequent contract(s) award.  

CONSTRUCTION PHASE

After Contract Award, Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. will prepare contract and bond for contractor execution and City approval.  
After the contracts are approved Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. will assist will all aspects of construction including preconstruction 
conference(s), preparation of pay estimates and change orders, construction observation, and construction staking, if needed.  

Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. feels that the construction services phase of projects of this nature are extremely important.  This 
project is not new construction but a rehabilitation of existing infrastructure.  With new construction, typically once projects 
are “out of the ground” many of the unknowns are over.  However, with a rehabilitation project of this nature there may be 
many unknowns encountered as work progresses that will require the designers and owners to consider alternate procedures, 
placement, or construction.  Timing is often critical so local availability of construction staff is a must.  

The scope of this project may require a multi-year project.  As such, reliable construction services are imperative to the 
successful completion of this project.  Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. has local staff available who can be dedicated to this project as 
needed to provide the construction services that will meet and exceed the expectations of the City.  
 
As previously stated, sequence and timing shall be planned and executed so it does not effect the plant performance or 
quality of the effluent water.  



CITY OF CHARITON: WASTEWATER FACILITY NUTRIENT REDUCTION PROJECT 9

Wastewater Treatment Facility 
Improvements

The City of Grinnell received a new discharge permit from the Iowa Department 
of Natural Resources in 2013. The permit contains more stringent limits for 
ammonia and new limits for disinfection. The permit also requires an evaluation 
be performed for the removal of total nitrogen and total phosphorous.

The City of Grinnell operated a single stage trickling filter facility. The facility 
was not  able to meet the new discharge limits for ammonia, disinfection and 
nutrients.

Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. evaluated several treatment technologies to meet new 
required limits. The City decided converting to an activated sludge treatment 
process would be the best alternative for meeting the ammonia and nutrient 
removal requirements. The carousel activated sludge process including nutrient 
removal, headworks screening, an additional final clarifier, and disinfection was 
completed in 2020. The capacity of the treatment facility was also increased 
from 5.0 mgd to 6.5 mgd to accommodate future growth in the City. 

Reference:
Daniel Ramos

Wastewater Director
(641) 236-2626

DRamos@grinnelliowa.gov

Grinnell, Iowa
The carousel activated

sludge process 
including nutrient 

removal, headworks 
screening, an 

additional final 
clarifier, and 

disinfection was 
completed in 2020.

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE


